
County Offices
Newland

Lincoln
LN1 1YL

23 June 2017

Planning and Regulation Committee

A meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee will be held on Monday, 3 July 
2017 in the Council Chamber, County Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL at 10.30 
am for the transaction of business set out on the attached Agenda. 

Yours sincerely

Tony McArdle
Chief Executive

Membership of the Planning and Regulation Committee
(15 Members of the Council)

I G Fleetwood (Chairman), T R Ashton (Vice-Chairman), D Brailsford, L A Cawrey, 
Mrs J E Killey, S R Kirk, D McNally, Mrs A M Newton, Mrs M J Overton MBE, 
N H Pepper, R P H Reid, S P Roe, P A Skinner, H Spratt and M J Storer

Public Document Pack





PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE AGENDA
 MONDAY, 3 JULY 2017

Item Title Report 
Reference 

1. Apologies/replacement members 

2. Declaration of Members' Interests 

3. Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and 
Regulation Committee held on 5 June 2017 (Pages 5 

- 8)

4. Traffic Item 

4.1  Traffic Regulation Orders – Progress Review 
(Pages 9 

- 14)
5. County Matter Applications 

5.1  To vary conditions 1, 4, 7, 11 and 12 of planning permission 
N/75/0353/15 at Mushroom Farm, Boundary Lane, South 
Hykeham - GBM Waste Management - N75/0625/17 

(Pages 15 
- 40)

Democratic Services Officer Contact Details 

Name: Steve Blagg
Direct Dial 01522 553788
E Mail Address steve.blagg@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Please Note: for more information about any of the following please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting

 Business of the meeting
 Any special arrangements
 Copies of reports

Contact details set out above.

All papers for council meetings are available on: 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords


This page is intentionally left blank



  1 

 
 

 

 

 
Councillors T R Ashton (Vice-Chairman), D Brailsford, L A Cawrey, S R Kirk, 
Mrs J E Killey, D McNally, Mrs A M Newton, N H Pepper, S P Roe, P A Skinner, 
H Spratt, M J Storer, B Adams and A N Stokes 
 
Councillors:  attended the meeting as observers 
 
Officers in attendance:- 
 
Steve Blagg (Democratic Services Officer), Andy Gutherson (County Commissioner 
for Economy and Place), Neil McBride (Planning Manager), Marc Willis (Applications 
Team Leader) and Mandy Wood (Solicitor) 
 
1     APOLOGIES/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS 

 
The Chief Executive reported that under the Local Government (Committee and 
Political Groups) Regulations 1990, he had appointed Councillors B Adams and A N 
Stokes to the Committee, place of Councillors R Reid and M J Storer, respectively, 
for this meeting only. 
 
2     DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 
Councillor I G Fleetwood requested that a note should be made in the minutes that 
he had bought materials from the applicant's business a few years ago (minute 4).  
 
Councillor I G Fleetwood requested that a note should be made in the minutes that 
he knew the applicant when the applicant had been a Councillor on West Lindsey 
District Council (no longer a Councillor) when he had been a Councillor on the same 
Council but had had no recent contact with the applicant and this would not affect his 
ability to serve as Chairman when the application was discussed (minute 5). 
 
Councillor H Spratt requested that a note should be made in the minutes that he 
knew the applicant but had not spoken to him for a few years (minute 5). 
 
3     MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND 

REGULATION COMMITTEE HELD ON 3 APRIL 2017 
 

RESOLVED  
 
That the minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee 
held on 3 April 2017, be agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



2 

 
4     COUNTY MATTER APPLICATIONS 

 
5     TO EXTEND THE EXISTING QUARRY INTO 4 HECTARES OF 

AGRICULTURAL LAND AT DUNSTON QUARRY, B1188 LINCOLN ROAD, 
DUNSTON - LEN KIRK PLANT HIRE LTD (AGENT: HUGHES CRAVEN 
LTD) - N26/0437/17 
 

Oliver Craven, representing the applicant, commented as follows:- 
 

 He referred to the close vote when the application had last been considered by 
the Committee in 2016. 

 At the meeting in 2016 a number of questions had been asked by the 
Committee and the applicant wished to respond to these comments and 
submit further information on why his application should be approved. 

 No technical issues had been raised about the application submitted in 2016 
and the development complied with all relevant policies within the Core 
Strategy and Development Management Policies of the Lincolnshire Minerals 
and Waste Local Plan (CSDMP). 

 The application would have no impact on the local environment. 

 The quarrying operation at the current site comprised the main part of the 
applicant's business operations and if the application was not approved then 
29 jobs were at risk of being lost. 

 The landbank detailed in the CSDMP was out of date and had been reduced to 
20 million tons due to a number of issues including the determination of 
numerous planning applications, the re-opening of quarries and the general 
improvement in the economy. 

 While the application was small it would secure employment and recycling 
facilities at the quarry. 

 
The applicant's representative responded to questions from the Committee as 
follows:- 
 

 The figures detailed in the CSDMP for the landbank had been verified by the 
Council. How had the applicant arrived at his figures? The applicant stated 
that the figures in Policy M5 of the CSDMP had been prepared in 2012/13 and 
took in the years when there was a recession. Since that time reserves had 
been worked and there had been a 30% increase in demand for limestone 
which had not been reflected in the CSDMP. 

 What was the evidence that jobs would be lost if the application was not 
approved? The applicant stated that many jobs relied on the quarrying 
operations and the recycling operation also relied on the success of the 
quarrying operation. The applicant's site off Whisby Road, near Lincoln, would 
also close. 

 If the application proceeded this would lead to a surplus of limestone and would 
not this bring down the cost of the product? The applicant stated that the 
closure of the Whisby site would have a significant impact on local builders 
because currently they did not have far to travel and therefore kept their costs 
down. 

Page 6



3 

 

 The policies in the CSDMP had not changed since its approval by the Council 
and had the applicant responded to the consultation about the CSDMP? The 
applicant stated that Policy M5 was out of date and since the CSDMP was 
prepared the industry had come out of recession. 

 

Officers stated that they accepted that the landbank reserve figure cited in the 
CSDMP was out of date as it was based on figures available in 2013 and had 
changed as a consequence of planning decisions taken since the CSDMP was 
prepared and more likely to be within the region of 20m tonnes. However, despite the 
landbank figure cited in the CSDMP being out of date given the size of the current 
landbank there were still substantial reserves and production and demand for 
aggregate would continue to be monitored. 
 
Officers stated that with regard to the comments made by the applicant in connection 
with the loss of jobs the recycling business within the applicant's site was permitted to 
remain within the site until 2025 and therefore, if the applicant chose to, this business 
could still provide employment. 
 
Comments by the Committee and the responses of officers included:- 
 

 Clarification was sought about the statistics relating to the reserves in the 
landbank? Officers stated that the figure of 20m tons in the landbank was from 
sites in operation and additional reserves existed in dormant sites which could 
be activated if necessary. 

 It was noted that the landbank figure was out of date but at what point would 
this figure require to be re-examined? Officers stated that production rates and 
changes to the landbank would continue to be monitored and in the event of 
any shortfall in supply this would trigger a review of the CSDMP. 

 It was considered that as economic growth had taken place since 2013 the 
application should be approved in view of the change in circumstances. 

 
On a motion by Councillor L A Cawrey, seconded by Councillor P A Skinner, it was –  
 
RESOLVED (12 votes for and 2 votes against) 
 
That the planning application be refused for the reason detailed in the report. 
 
6     FOR THE INSTALLATION OF PLANT COMPOUND FOR THE CLEANING 

AND DISTRIBUTION OF GAS TO THE NATIONAL GRID ON LAND 
ADJACENT TO THE EXISTING ANAEROBIC DIGESTER PLANT, 
HEMSWELL CLIFF INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, HEMSWELL CLIFF - MR ADAM 
DUGUID (AGENT: G J PERRY PLANNING CONSULTANT) - 
W127/135826/17 

 
Adam Duguid, the applicant, commented as follows:- 
 

 He stated that there was not a lot that he could add to the report. He noted the 
comments made by West Lindsey District Council's Environmental Health 

Page 7



4 

 
Officer, in particular, the issues of odours from the spreading of digestates on 
the land were being address. 

 He stated that since its installation National Grid had now adopted the gas 
pipeline from the applicant's site.  

 
On a motion by Councillor D McNally, seconded by Councillor P A Skinner, it was –  
 
RESOLVED (unanimous) 
 
That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 11.15 am 

Page 8



 

   
Regulatory and Other Committee 

 

Open Report on behalf of Richard Wills, Executive Director for Environment 
and Economy 

 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 03 JULY 2017 

Subject: Traffic Regulation Orders – Progress Review  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report informs the Committee of the position on all current Traffic 
Regulation Orders (Appendix A - B) and petitions received since the last 
meeting (Appendix C). 

 
 

Recommendation(s): 

That the report be received and the receipt of petitions be noted. 
 

 
Background
N/A  
 
Conclusion
N/A
 
Consultation 
 
 
 

 

 
 

a)  Has Risks and Impact Analysis been carried Out? 
N/A 
 
b) Risk and Impact Analysis? 

N/A 
 
 

Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A List of Traffic Regulations Orders 

Appendix B Explanatory Note on the Temporary 
Suspension of Traffic Regulation Order 
Reviews 

Appendix C Petitions that have been received since the 
last report 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4.1



 

 

5. Background Papers 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report 
 
This report was written by Jeanne Gibson who can be contacted on 01522 782070 
or cschighways@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 10

mailto:cschighways@lincolnshire.gov.uk


1033.X0R 

                      
APPENDIX A 

          

           

PARISH LOCATION TYPE PREVIOUS POSITION PRESENT POSITION 

1.  Anwick Chapel Lane Revocation of Prohibition of Driving  Consulting 

2.  Bardney Horncastle Road Waiting Restrictions and Bus Stop Consulting As previous 

3.  Boston  London Road Toucan Crossing Operative date to be arranged As previous 

4.  Foston Main Street Stopping Up of Highway  Consulting 

5.  Gainsborough Beaumont Street Pedestrian Crossing  Operative date to be arranged 

6.  Grantham Church Street / Castlegate Waiting Restrictions Consultations imminent As previous 

7.  Grantham Dysart Road Waiting Restrictions  Consulting 

8.  Grantham St Catherines Road and   

Welham Street 

Waiting Restrictions Operative date to be arranged As previous 

9.  
Holton le Clay A16 / Louth Road 

40mph Speed Limit Extension / 
cycleway 

 Consulting 

10.  Horncastle West Street / Bridge Street Waiting/Loading Restrictions Operative date to be arranged AS previous 

11.  Horncastle West Street Waiting Restriction  Operative date to be arranged 

12.  Kirton Willington Road Waiting Restrictions Consulting As previous 

13.  Lincoln Clasketgate, Mint Street and 

Corporation Street 

Various Waiting Restrictions, Taxi 

Rank and Loading Bay 

Operative date to be arranged Operative 01/10/17 

14.  Lincoln Transport Hub (St Marys Street, 

Wigford Way, etc) 

Waiting and Loading Restrictions  Consulting 

15.  Lincoln Waterside South  (Witham Park) Waiting Restrictions  Operative 03/07/17 

16.  Lincoln Waterside South / City Sq Area Experimental Restricted Parking 

Zone 

 Operative 18/07/17 

17.  Mablethorpe Hammond Court Revocation of Waiting Restrictions  Objections to be reviewed 

18.  Market Rasen Queen Street Experimental Loading Restrictions On Going Experiment As previous 

19.  North Witham Old Post Lane 40mph Speed Limit  Consulting 

P
age 11



1033.X0R 

PARISH LOCATION TYPE PREVIOUS POSITION PRESENT POSITION 

20.  Revesby West Lane Prohibition of Motor Vehicles Operative date to be arranged Operative 03/07/17 

21.  Skegness A52 40moph Speed Limit  Consulting 

22.  Skegness A52 Footway / Cycleway Conversion  Consulting 

23.  Skegness North Parade Waiting Restrictions Consulting Operative date to be arranged 

24.  Sleaford Carpark access off Grantham 

Road 

Waiting Restrictions  Operative date to be arranged 

25.  Sleaford London Road 30mph Speed Limit   Consulting 

26.  Sleaford Mareham Lane Waiting Restrictions  Operative date to be arranged 

27.  Stamford Rutland Terrace Waiting Restrictions  Objections End 23/06/17 

28.  Stamford Uffington Road Pedestrian Crossing Operative date to be arranged As previous 

29.  Sutton Bridge Bridge Road Waiting Restrictions  Operative date to be arranged 

30.  Sutterton A17 Derestriction Consulting As previous 

31.  Trusthorpe Sutton Road Experimental Prohibition of Driving Consulting Operative date to be arranged 

32.  Welton Lincoln Road Bus Stop Facilities Operative date to be arranged As previous 

33.  Wyberton Various Roads 30mph Speed Limit Consulting As previous 

   

    

    

    

             

 

P
age 12



1033.X0R 

          Appendix B 

Explanatory Note on the Temporary Suspension of Traffic Order Regulations 

Reviews 

 

In November 2015 the Portfolio Holder agreed to a temporary suspension of 

Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) progression. 

 

Work on TROs is currently only initiated in the following circumstances: 

 

 a. TROs that were in progress at the start of December 2015. 

 

 b. TROs required as a result of collision investigation by Lincolnshire 

 Road Safety Partnership. 

 

 c. TROs required to facilitate and progress new developments 

Page 13



1033.X0R 

APPENDIX C 
 

The following petitions have been received since the last report.  They have been acknowledged 
and will be dealt with in the normal manner. 
 
 

 
PARISH 

 

 
LOCATION 

 
PETITION FOR 

 
Holbeach 
 
 
Louth 

 
B1515 
 
 
James Street 
 
 

 
Review of Speed Limit and School Safety 
Zone 
 
Residents Parking Scheme 

 
 
 

 

Page 14



 
 

 Regulatory and Other Committee 
 

Open Report on behalf of Richard Wills  
Executive Director, Environment & Economy 

 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 3 July 2017 

Subject: County Matter Application - N75/0625/17 

 

Summary: 

Planning permission is sought by GBM Waste Management Limited (Agent:  
Steven Dunn Architects Limited) to vary conditions 1, 4, 7, 11 and 12 of planning 
permission N/75/0353/15 which relates to the existing waste management facility 
known as Mushroom Farm on Boundary Lane, South Hykeham.  The proposed 
variations to the conditions are sought in order to enable the site to accept two 
specific types of hazardous waste, to increase the daily number of vehicle 
movements and to amend elements of the sites approved layout including 
increasing the stockpile heights for externally stored materials. 

The key considerations in this case are whether the introduction of new waste 
streams and proposed amendments to the site, including increased vehicle 
movements, would result in harm to the amenity of the local community or 
environment and have an unacceptable impact on the highway network and 
highway safety. 

Having taken into account the nature of the changes proposed and the details 
submitted in support of this application, the proposed changes to the site and 
revised waste streams would not give rise to any new significant environmental or 
amenity impacts over and above those which have already been deemed 
acceptable or which could not be reasonably controlled through the imposition of 
revised planning conditions.  The proposed increase in vehicle movements would 
also not have an adverse impact upon the function or safety of the local highway 
network as this has capacity to accommodate the increased traffic and therefore 
the proposed modifications are considered acceptable.  The proposed revised 
development can therefore be supported and would still accord with the objectives 
and principles of the cited policies of the National Planning Policy Framework, 
Lincolnshire Minerals & Waste Local Plan: Core Strategy & Development 
Management Policies and the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan. 

 

Recommendation: 

Following consideration of the relevant development plan policies and the 
comments received through consultation and publicity it is recommended that 
conditional planning permission be granted. 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5.1



Background 
 
1. The Mushroom Farm site has a long history of being used to carry out waste 

management operations with permissions dating back to as early as 1993 
(when the site was known and operated as Woods Skip Hire).  Over the 
years further planning permissions have been granted which have allowed 
the redevelopment and modernisation of the site including the construction 
of new buildings and changes to the site operations and layout.  Those 
permissions include Ref: N75/0892/13 (granted in 2013) which covered the 
whole of the former Woods Skip Hire site and allowed for the construction of 
two sheds along with changes to the site infrastructure and layout.  More 
recently a further planning permission was granted Ref: N75/0353/15 
(granted 30 July 2015) which also allowed for the construction of a new 
building along with associated changes to the site's layout although this 
permission focused those operations and uses to the eastern half of the site 
only.  The land to the west of this area (which once formed part of the 
original Woods Skip Hire site and was subject of permission N75/0892/13) 
has subsequently been granted planning permission by North Kesteven 
District Council (Ref: 15/0133/FUL) for the erection of three industrial 
buildings for uses falling with Use Classes B1 (Business) and B8 (Storage 
and distribution). 

 
2. The applicant is seeking to vary conditions attached to the planning 

permission covering the waste management operations (i.e. N75/0353/15) 
so as to enable the site to accept two specific types of hazardous waste, to 
increase the daily number of vehicle movements and to amend elements of 
the site's approved layout, including increasing the stockpile heights for 
externally stored materials.  This would require amendments to be made to 
the following conditions: 

 
 Condition 1 
 
 This permission related to the site edged red on Drawing No. 2296-A2-05d 

(received 2 March 2015) for the construction of a building for the purposes 
of waste recycling in association with the current use of the site as a waste 
transfer station and the development works as detailed within the approved 
documents and drawings set out below unless modified by the conditions 
attached to this planning permission or details subsequently approved 
pursuant to those conditions.  The approved documents and drawings are 
as follows: 

 

 Planning Application Form (received 17 March 2015); 

 Design and Access Statement and Supporting Statement (23 February 
2015); 

 Drawing No 2296-A2-06g – 'Proposed Site Location/Block Plan 
(received 21 July 2015); 

 Drawing No. 2296-A2-07a - 'General Arrangement Drawing' (received 
23 February 2015); 

Page 16



 Flood Risk Assessment 'Proposed Materials Recycling Facility, 
Boundary Lane, South Hykeham, LINCOLN LN6 8JU' (received 2 March 
2015);  

 E-mail 'Further Details' (received 6 May 2015); and  

 E-mail PL/0034/15 – Mushroom Farm (received 27 May 2015). 
 
 Reason 
 

To define the permission and to ensure the development is implemented in 
all respects in accordance with the approved details. 

 
  Condition 4 
 
 No wastes or materials shall be stored or stockpiled externally other than 

upon the impermeable yard/area as defined on Drawing No. 2296-A2-06g 
and the height of such stockpiles or stores shall be no greater than 3 metres 
above the finished surface level of that part of the site upon which they are 
stored. 

 
 Reason 
 
 To minimise the visual impacts of the development on nearby residents and 

the wider area. 
 

Condition 7 
 
 The total number of vehicle movements associated with the importation and 

exportation of wastes and materials shall not exceed 52 movements (26 in 
and 26 out) per day Monday to Saturday.  All vehicles carrying wastes shall 
not leave the site unless its wheels and underside chassis are clean so as to 
prevent materials, including mud and debris, being deposited on the public 
highway. 

 
Reason 
 
For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure impacts on highway capacity and 
safety have been fully considered. 

 
Condition11  

 
Notwithstanding details of firefighting water provision shown on Drawing No. 
2296- A2-06g the site shall not come into use until further details of the 
above ground vessel to include capacity and design have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Waste Planning Authority.  The approved 
scheme shall be implemented in full and maintained for the duration of the 
development. 

 
Reason 
 
To ensure an adequate supply of firefighting water. 

Page 17



Condition 12 
 
A total of no more than 49,500 tonnes of material shall be brought to the site 
as shown within the red line boundary on Drawing No. 2296-A2-06g 
'Proposed Site Location/Block Plan' (received 20 July 2015) per calendar 
year, for the purposes of the development hereby permitted.  The operator 
shall maintain records of their quarterly waste imports to the site which shall 
be retained for at least two years and be made available to the Waste 
Planning Authority within 28 days of request. 

 
Reason 
 
To define the permission and to ensure the development is implemented in 
all respects in accordance with the approved details. 

 
The Application 
 
3. Planning permission is sought by GBM Waste Management to amend 

Conditions 1, 4, 7, 11 and 12 of planning permission Ref: N75/0353/15 
which relates to the existing waste management facility known as Mushroom 
Farm on Boundary Lane, South Hykeham. 

 
4. The applicant is seeking to transfer their current waste management 

operations/activities from their existing site at Roe House, Boundary Lane 
Business Park to the Mushroom Farm site.  In order to facilitate this 
relocation and ensure continuity of the applicant's business, planning 
conditions relating to the Mushroom Farm site would require amending.  
These include an amendment to Condition 1 (which cites the approved 
documents and details relating to the existing permitted operations) so as to 
not only reflect proposed changes to the site layout but also to allow the 
applicant to accept and accommodate two hazardous waste streams which 
were not originally proposed and therefore not approved under the terms of 
the existing planning permission.  The hazardous waste streams identified 
by the applicant are Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE) 
(e.g. older fridges and freezers, fluorescent tubes, old TVs and computer 
monitors containing cathode ray tubes, etc.) as well as asbestos.  The 
applicant states that only a limited volume of these wastes would be 
accepted at the site per day (i.e. a combined total of 10 tonnes) and in both 
cases the wastes would be stored in sealed containers or internally within 
the permitted waste transfer building.  These wastes would also only be 
temporarily bulk stored within the site prior to their onward transportation to 
licensed facilities elsewhere for further processing and/or disposal.  
Therefore only a limited volume of wastes would be stored at any one time 
and they would not be processed or broken up on site.  Table 1 identifies the 
existing approved waste streams together with the proposed hazardous 
waste. 

 

Page 18



 
  Table 1 

   
5. In addition to the amendment to the waste types, the applicant is also 

seeking to rearrange the layout of the approved site (Plan 1) for operational 
reasons.  

  

 
      Plan 1 

Page 19



6. These changes (Plan 2) would include: 
 

 creation of a quarantine area; 

 relocation of the attenuation lagoon and firefighting water storage tank; 

 an area for the isolation of the proposed hazardous wastes bulk 
containers; 

 creation of bays to contain the segregated inert waste; and 

 inert waste stockpile heights from 3m to 3.6m.   
 

 
Plan 2 

 
7. Due to the proposed acceptance of WEEE and asbestos wastes, the 

applicant is also seeking to amend Condition 7 which limits vehicle 
movements to the site to 52 vehicle movements per day (26 in and 26 out).  
The applicant is seeking to increase this figure to 150 vehicle movements 
per day (75 in and 75 out) as typically small vehicles are associated with the 
transportation of WEEE and asbestos wastes and so this increased number 
of vehicle movements would give greater flexibility and allow these to be 
accommodated within the limits of the consent. 

 
8. The applicant states that both of the hazardous waste streams would be 

handled in line with the requirements of an Environmental Permit (currently 
under consideration by the Environment Agency) which again would not 
cover the processing or treatment of either of these wastes at the site.  
Instead, and as indicated previously, both waste streams would therefore 
simply be temporarily bulked up ready for onward transportation to sites 
where they can be finally disposed of or dismantled at appropriately licenced 
facilities. 

 

Page 20



9. Finally, the applicant has confirmed that although the waste types proposed 
to be handled by the site may be widened there is no proposal to increase 
the total waste throughput per annum.  This is currently approved at a level 
of 49,500 tonnes per annum of which 2% (approximately 3.0 tonnes daily) 
would be hazardous, should this application be approved.  Additionally, the 
applicant is not seeking to increase the hours of operation and the permitted 
non-hazardous wastes would continue to be subject to sorting within the 
waste transfer building as currently approved by planning permission Ref: 
N/75/0353/15. 
 

Site and Surroundings 
 

 
  Photo 1 

 
10. The site is located to the south of Boundary Lane, the entrance (Photo 1) is 

500 metres south east of the A1434 Newark Road at South Hykeham and in 
total less than 1km from the A46.  To the south and east of the site lies 
predominantly open agricultural land.  To the north of Boundary Lane is a 
large area of open pasture, separating the site from the densely residential 
areas of South Hykeham the nearest housing estate being approximately 
100m distant.  There are three residential bungalows immediately to the 
west of the site entrance separating the site from a group of small industrial 
units and an area of waste ground, this area is adjacent to Danker Wood 
that is covered by a Tree Preservation Order, which is approximately 100m 
to the west of the application site.  The areas to the north and south of 
Boundary Lane have been allocated as part of the Sustainable Urban 
Extension (SUE) South West Quadrant – land at Grange Farm, Hykeham, 
the area to the north being allocated for residential and the area to the south 
as mixed use employment land expanding the Boundary Lane Enterprise 
Park (Plan 3). 

Page 21



 

 
  Plan 3  
 

11. The site being roughly triangular is bounded on two sides by a substantial 
bund standing to a minimum height of 3m.  External to the northern bund 
and running along Boundary Lane is a mature planted hedge, standing to a 
height of 2.7m this hedge is interspersed with trees grown to heights in 
excess of 5m. 

 
12. The southern boundary bund, running in a westerly direction from the road, 

follows the route of the Internal Drainage Board maintained South Hykeham 
Catchwater/Danker Drain, with a spillway defining the extent of the site.  The 
external bank of the southern bund is heavily vegetated with native species 
of shrubs and trees. 

 
13. The southern portion of the site is within Flood Zones 2 and 3.  The western 

boundary of the site is demarked by the access road and an area of open 
ground covered by planning permission Reference N/75/0892/13 and having 
a 3.0 metre bund to south, west and north.  This latter area is now subject to 
a planning permission (not yet implemented) granted by North Kesteven 
District Council Ref 15/0133/FUL for the 'Erection of 3 industrial buildings'.   

 
Main Planning Considerations 
 
National Guidance 
 
14. National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (March 2012) sets out the 

Government’s planning policies for England and is a material planning 
consideration in the determination of planning applications.  In assessing 
and determining development proposals, Local Planning Authorities should 
apply the presumption in favour of sustainable development.  The main 
policies/statements set out in the NPPF which are relevant to this proposal 
are as follows (summarised): 

 
Paragraph 14 – sustainable development in accordance with the 
development plan; 
 
Paragraph 17 – seeks to secure a good standard of amenity for all existing 
and future occupants of land and buildings and reducing pollution; 

Page 22



 
Paragraph 103 – Flood Risk Assessment; 
 
Paragraph 120 – new development should be appropriate for its location 
and not have adverse effects on the natural environment or general amenity; 
 
Paragraph 122 – land use planning should focus on whether a development 
is an acceptable use of land and the impact of the proposed use, rather than 
the control of processes or emissions themselves where they are subject to 
approval under pollution control regimes; 
 
Paragraph 123 – development should not give rise to significant adverse 
impacts on health and quality of life and mitigate and reduce to a minimum 
other adverse impacts such as noise; 
 
Paragraphs 186 and 187 - decision-taking should be approached in a 
positive way to foster the delivery of sustainable development and where 
possible planning authorities should work proactively with applicants to 
secure developments that improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions in the area;  
 
Paragraph 206 – use of planning conditions where necessary and relevant; 
 
Paragraph 215– Due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing 
plans according to their degree of consistency with the framework. This is of 
relevance to the Lincolnshire County Council Core Strategy and 
Development Management Plan (2016) and Central Lincolnshire Local Plan 
(2017). 

 
Local Plan Context 
 
15. Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan: Core Strategy and 

Development Management Policies (CSDMP) (2016) - the key policies of 
relevance in this case are as follows (summarised): 

 
Policy W1 (Future requirements for New Waste Facilities) predicts the 
capacity gaps for waste arisings in the County; 
 
Policy W3 (Spatial Strategy for New Waste Facilities) identifies that there is 
a preference for sites in and around main urban areas such as Lincoln; 
 
Policy W4 (Locational Criteria for New Waste Facilities) defines new as 
including extensions to existing waste facilities; 
 
Policy W8 (Safeguarding Waste Management Sites) seeks to safeguard 
existing and allocated waste management facilities from the encroachment 
of incompatible development;  
 
Policy DM1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development) states that 
when considering development proposals, the County Council will take a 

Page 23



positive approach.  Planning applications that accord with the policies in this 
Local Plan will be approved without delay, unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise; 
 
Policy DM2 (Climate Change) states that proposals for minerals and waste 
management developments should address the following matters where 
applicable: 

 

 Minerals and Waste – Locations which reduce distances travelled by 
HCVs in the supply of minerals and the treatment of waste; and 

 Waste – Implement the Waste Hierarchy and reduce waste to landfill; 
 

Policy DM3 (Quality of Life and Amenity) states that planning permission will 
be granted for minerals and waste development provided that it does not 
generate unacceptable adverse impacts arising; 
 
Policy DM13 (Sustainable Transport Movements) states that proposal 
should seek to minimise road based transport; 
 
Policy DM14 (Transport by Road) states that permission be granted for 
mineral and waste development where the highway network is of an 
appropriate standard for use by the traffic generated by the development 
and will not would not have an unacceptable impact on highway safety, free 
flow of traffic, residential amenity or the environment; 
 
Policy DM15 (Flooding and Flood Risk) states that minerals and waste 
developments will need to demonstrate that they can be developed without 
increasing the risk of flooding both to the site of the proposal and the 
surrounding area; 
 
Policy DM16 (Water Resources) states that permission will be granted 
where they would not have an unacceptable impact on surface or ground 
waters and due regard is given to water conservation and efficiency; 
 
Policy DM17 (Cumulative Impacts) states that planning permission will be 
granted for minerals and waste developments where the cumulative impact 
would not result in significant adverse impacts on the environment of an 
area or on the amenity of a local community, either in relation to the 
collective effect of different impacts of an individual proposal, or in relation to 
the effects of a number of developments occurring either concurrently or 
successively. 

 
16. Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (2017) - the key policies of relevance in this 

case are as follows (summarised): 
 

Policy LP1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development) states that 
planning permission will be granted unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise; 
 

Page 24



Policy LP2 (Spatial Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy) defines the Lincoln 
Urban Area which extends to include South Hykeham; 
 
Policy LP3 (Level and Distribution of Growth) identifies that: 

 
a. Lincoln Strategy Area employment land will be delivered by way of: 

 
ii. Sustainable urban extensions to Lincoln including Lincoln SW 

Quadrant SUE; 
 

Policy LP5 (Delivering Prosperity and Jobs) identifies the extent of CL4668 
Lincoln SW Quadrant SUE 5ha; 
 
Policy LP13 (Accessibility and Transport) states that any development that 
has severe transport implication will not be granted planning permission; 
 
Policy LP14 (Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk) requires that all 
development proposals will be considered against the NPPF and the likely 
impact on surface and ground water should consider the requirements of the 
Water Framework Directive; 
 
Policy LP26 (Residential Amenity) states that consideration should be given 
to impact upon the amenity of neighbouring residents by virtue of noise and 
vehicles movements; 
 
Policy LP28 (Sustainable Urban Extensions) categorises the land use 
relating to SUE in this instance: 

 
d.  provision of a wide range of local employment opportunities and offer a 

range of jobs in different sectors of the economy; 
   
Policy LP30 (Lincoln Sustainable Urban Extensions) identifies the relevant 
SUE relating to Lincoln area namely South West Quadrant SUW (SWQ) – 
Land at Grange Farm, Hykeham – Approximately 5ha of land for 
employment (B Use Classes) expanding the Boundary Lane Enterprise Park 
linking with Roman Way. 

 
Results of Consultation and Publicity 
 
17. (a) Local County Council Member, Councillor S Roe – (summarised) has 

registered his opposition citing concerns over the proposed increase in 
commercial vehicle traffic on Newark Road, Boundary Lane and Beck 
Lane.  More specifcially concerns are expressed regaring the junctions 
of Newark Road/Boundary Lane and Boundary Lane/Beck Lane and 
also concerns about general highway safety on Boundary Lane and 
around South Hykeham School where often parents with children 
attending the school park on Beck Lane.  Finally, there are also 
concerns regarding an increase in congestion on Newark Road and Mill 
Lane especially during peak commuting/rush hour. 

 

Page 25



 (b) South Hykeham Parish Council (summarised) – strongly object to this 
proposal with the key issues being the increase in vehicle movements 
on Boundary Lane and concerns of highway safety as well as noise 
impacts upon residents in the area.  Further comments are made in 
relation to the changes to the waste types and concerns that the 
operations at the site could have a detrimental effect on the health and 
wellbeing of the local community.  Finally, concerns are also expressed 
that the emergency services may not be able to tackle a major incident 
referring to the comments from the Fire Authority (relating to an earlier 
planning application) with regard to an inadequate supply of fire fighting 
water. 

 
 (c) North Hykeham Town Council – (summarised) object strongly.  

Although the Council acknowledges that Boundary Lane is now 
classified as a commercial road in the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan 
the Council feels that the lane should be improved as should the 
junction with Newark Road.  Concerns were expressed with regard to 
road safety and the introduction of hazardous waste to the site and the 
potential impacts on the health of residents and impacts on the wider 
environment through contamination of water courses and drains.  
Additional comments were received identifying recent accidents at the 
Boundary Lane/Newark Road junction. 

 
 (d) Environment Agency (EA) – has no objection and confirmed that an 

Environmental Permit application has been submitted to them which is 
currently under consideration.  The Environmental Permit would also 
consider a range of operational matters and place conditions and 
controls on the site including covering matters such as site 
management, emissions, records, reporting and notification regimes 
and fire-risk. 

 
  With regard to flood risk considerations, the EA has no objections if site 

is built in accordance with the details contained within the application. 
 
 (e) Highways and Lead Local Flood Authority – has commented that the 

volume of traffic associated with this proposal (150 vehicles per day) is 
not considered significant.  The adjoining highway network has 
adequate capacity to accommodate the increase in traffic.  The 
principle of safe and suitable access to the site for all users has been 
established by the existing permission.   

 
  In terms of surface water issues, the surface water attenuation and 

discharge proposed in the submitted FRA is compliant with NPPF and 
consequently the Authority does not wish to object to this application. 

 
 (f) Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board - confirmed the location of the 

site in relation to the IDB district and had no further comment. 
 

Page 26



18. The following persons/bodies were consulted on 2 May 2017 but no 
response had been received within the statutory consultation period or by 
the time this report was prepared: 

 
Environmental Health Officer (North Kesteven District Council)  

  Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue  
 
19. The application has been publicised by notices posted at the site and in the 

local press (Lincolnshire Echo on 11 May 2017) and letters of notification 
were sent to five neighbouring residents.  87 representations have been 
received from local residents, together with a petition signed by 202 people, 
during the statutory consultation period the following being a summary of the 
issues identified: 

 

 Boundary Lane is unsuitable for heavy industrial traffic; 

 highway safety impacts on all road users; 

 condition of the road surface, no kerbs, no footways and no street 
lighting; 

 negative impacts on the landscape; 

 health and quality of life impacts (noise, dust, bio-aerosols, odour, toxic 
waste, air/water pollution) on local residents and school children, 
including the proposed expansion of residential development to the north 
of Boundary Lane; 

 negative impacts on wildlife and Dankers Wood; 

 fire risk and the potential for major pollution incidents as a consequence 
of fire; 

 cumulative effects of this proposal when considered with other proposals 
in the area. 

 
District Council’s Recommendations 
 
20. North Kesteven District Council (NKDC) objects to the proposal and has 

stated that the key considerations are the impact of the proposal upon the 
planned South West Quadrant Sustainable Urban Extension development 
(SWQ SUE), highway network and amenity of surrounding occupiers. 

 
21. NKDC has confirmed that the SWQ SUE has been allocated within the 

recently adopted CLLP and would provide, along with all other necessary 
infrastructure, approximately 2,000 dwellings and 5ha of mixed use 
employment expanding the Boundary Lane Enterprise Park within which the 
application site is located.  The principle of employment use on this site 
would not therefore conflict with the delivery of the SWQ SUE, however, 
NKDC comment that it is unclear whether the nature of the use currently 
proposed, namely the storage and bulking of hazardous waste, could result 
in the need for a buffer zone around the site (including as a condition of any 
varied Environmental Permit) thereby subsequently impacting upon the 
unfettered planning of the SUE.  Given this uncertainty NKDC state that 
unless such confirmation can be provided they have concerns that the 
approval of this application could result in a conflict with Policy LP28 which 
requires the SUE to be planned and implemented in a co-ordinated way. 

Page 27



 
22. In terms of highways concerns, the proposal would result in a three-fold 

increase in the daily number of vehicle movements in to and out of the 
application site.  NKDC considers this to be significant and likely to result in 
demonstrable harm to the surrounding area through increased demand on 
the highway network and argues that the use of smaller vehicles is not 
considered to mitigate this concern.  It is also commented that whilst it is 
understood that the applicant currently operates out of a unit on the 
neighbouring Boundary Enterprise Park and that this would cease should 
this permission be granted, this could not be relied upon to mitigate any 
increase in traffic movements in the local area as the unit could be re-
occupied. 

 
23. Finally, in terms of residential amenity it is commented that the proposed 

increase in the amount and nature of the waste to be handled on this site is 
considered likely to impact upon the amenity of neighbouring residents by 
virtue of the noise and disturbance from increased vehicle movements.  This 
would be contrary to the provisions of Policy LP26 of the CLLP. 

 
24. Overall, and taking into account the above, the Council objects to the 

application and comments that further clarity should be given regarding the 
need or otherwise for a buffer zone around the site given the proposed 
handling of hazardous wastes at the site.  

 
Conclusion 
 
25. This application is made under Section 73A of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 (as amended) which allows for applications for planning 
permission without complying with the conditions to which a previous 
permission was granted.  It creates a new permission, with a varied wording 
of condition(s), which the applicant can implement or ignore and does not 
amend any existing planning permission. 

 
26. The key considerations in this case are whether the proposal would have 

any impact upon the planned SWQ SUE development and whether the 
introduction of new waste streams and the increase in vehicle movements 
would result in harm to the amenity of the local community or environment 
and have an unacceptable impact on the highway network and highway 
safety. 

 
Location and Existing and Planned Future Development 
 
27. Mushroom Farm has a long history of being used for the transfer and 

storage of wastes and although the permissions affecting the site have been 
altered over the years the site is a well-established facility.  Planning 
consent already exists allowing for the storage and handling of wastes within 
the site and the changes sought by this application would not fundamentally 
change the principal use or nature of the waste handling operations and 
activities. 

 

Page 28



28. In this case it is accepted that the CLLP has recently been adopted and as 
part of this plan has identified and allocated the site and land around it as 
part of the planned SWQ SUE.  The residential element of the proposed 
SWQ SUE extends to the north of Boundary Lane whilst the proposal site 
itself, as acknowledged by NKDC's response, has existing industrial uses 
and forms part of the mixed use employment land that would expand the 
Boundary Lane Enterprise Park.  Waste uses are considered to be suitable 
activities to be carried out within industrial/employment areas (as reflected in 
the Spatial Strategy of Policy W3 and locational criterion of Policy W4 of the 
CSDMP) and the continued use of this site would not therefore conflict with 
the planned industrial/employment uses identified for future development 
within immediate proximity to the site and so not pose a conflict or risk to the 
delivery of this project. 

 
29. With regard the residential element of the SWQ SUE, whilst NKDC's 

comments about the potential impacts of this proposal upon the delivery of 
the housing element are noted, as far as Officers are aware no planning 
permission or masterplan has yet been approved relating to this aspect of 
the development.  As there are currently no details on how any housing 
scheme would be configured or how close they may be to the Mushroom 
Farm site it is impossible to assess if the changes sought by this application 
would have an impact on future residents of that development.  In any case, 
the Mushroom Farm site is an established waste management facility and 
therefore in accordance with Policy W8 of the CSDMP it should itself be 
afforded protection from encroachment by development which may be 
considered incompatible or which could unduly impede or impact upon the 
operations of the site.  Given the current lack of detail about the future 
housing development, it would therefore be unreasonable to place 
restrictions or refuse this application on the grounds of potential impacts 
when these cannot be readily identified and assessed.  For example, whilst 
it is understood that there would not be a need for any buffer zone to be 
created around the site as a consequence of it now proposing to handle 
small proportions of hazardous wastes, even if such a zone was required 
(and/or other buffer zones or stand-off distances between future residential 
properties and the site were considered necessary due to factors such as 
noise) then it would be for the developers of the SWQ SUE to take this into 
account when drawing up their plans in order to ensure that their 
development does not constrain or impede operations of the Mushroom 
Farm site. 

 
30. Taking into account all of the above, whilst the comments about the potential 

impacts of this proposal on future and planned development are noted, this 
application does not change the fact that Mushroom Farm is an established 
and consented waste management facility.  The proposed amendments to 
the conditions and elements of development sought by this application do 
not alter the principal use or nature of the site operations which have been 
deemed acceptable and suitable in this location.  The continued and 
amended use would also still be compatible with the planned industrial/ 
employment uses identified for the area and conditions and controls have 
been placed on the planning permission to ensure that the amenity of 

Page 29



existing residents living close to the site are not unduly impacted.  Those 
same controls and conditions would continue to be in place and so would 
also be in pace to ensure that the amenity of any future residents in the 
locality are also protected.  Overall it is therefore concluded that this 
development would not compromise the objectives or planned delivery of 
the SWQ SUE and so do not conflict with Policies LP26 and LP28 of the 
CLLP that seeks to protect residential amenity whilst delivering a wide range 
of local employment opportunities, insofar as the existing site and uses falls 
within the 5ha of land identified for employment, expanding the Boundary 
Lane Enterprise Park and linking with Roman Way, as promoted by Policies 
LP2, LP3, LP5 and LP30 of the CLLP.  Finally, the proposal has been 
considered in respect of Cumulative Impacts as required by the NPPF and 
Policy DM17 of the CSDMP which states that waste developments should 
not result in significant adverse impacts, either in relation to the collective 
effect of different impacts of an individual proposal, or in relation to the 
effects of a number of developments occurring concurrently or successively. 

 
Waste Hierarchy 
 
31. The current permission and development essentially allows the importation, 

separation (within a building) and storage of inert waste for the purposes of 
bulking up into separate waste streams prior to onward transportation to 
permitted facilities for further processing or final disposal.  The proposed 
introduction of hazardous wastes, namely Waste Electrical and Electronic 
Equipment (WEEE) and asbestos, would seek only to store these waste 
streams in an appropriately sealed container for the purpose of bulking up 
prior to onward transportation to licensed facilities for further processing 
and/or disposal.  The bulking up of these wastes would not compromise the 
aims and objectives of Policy W1 of the CSDMP that identifies any capacity 
gaps for waste arising in Lincolnshire and reduces the need for multiple trips 
to facilities for further treatment and disposal thus meeting the aims and 
objectives of the NPPF and Policy DM13 of the CSDMP that seeks to 
minimise road based transportation.  The proposed change would not 
undermine the waste planning strategy through prejudicing movement up 
the waste hierarchy by diverting recoverable materials that would otherwise 
be disposed of via landfill.  Therefore this part of the revised operation of this 
facility would still facilitate recovery and thus there would be no change to 
the position of the existing site in terms of the waste hierarchy.  On this 
basis the proposed changes are considered acceptable, subject to suitable 
controls to limit any additional pollution issues that might arise.  The 
proposal meets the aims and objectives of the NPPF and Policies DM1 and 
DM2 of the CSDMP and does not conflict with nor compromise Policy LP1 of 
the CLLP that confirms that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development.  

 
Flood Risk and Water Management   
 
32. The proposed changes to the site layout would result in the relocation of the 

approved attenuation lagoon, this lagoon would manage surface water run-
off and would also have sufficient capacity to accommodate any fire water 

Page 30



run-off.  The water from this attenuation lagoon would be re-circulated to 
maintain the approved supply of 10,000 litres of fire-fighting water and any 
excess, following settlement, would discharge to South Hykeham 
Catchwater/Danker Drain to approved greenfield run-off rates.  The 
Highways and Lead Local Flood Authority together with the Environment 
Agency confirm that the changes to the location of the attenuation lagoon 
and discharge regime are acceptable and therefore compliant with the 
NPPF and meet the aims and objectives of Policy DM15 of the CSDMP.  As 
a consequence the proposal would not conflict with nor compromise Policy 
LP14 that seeks to minimise Flood Risk and impacts on surface and ground 
water. 

 
Highways 
 
33. The proposed changes to all vehicle movements would increase the daily 

rate to 75 vehicle in and 75 vehicles out of the site Monday to Saturday.  
This represents a three-fold increase on the existing vehicle movements.  
NKDC has stated that they consider the increase in vehicle movements as 
likely to impact on the amenity of the neighbouring residents by virtue of 
noise and disturbance however, the Highways Officer considers that the 
increase in vehicle movements does not represent a significant increase in 
traffic and that the highway network relating to Boundary Lane and Newark 
Road has adequate capacity to accommodate the proposed increase.  In 
addition the Highways Officer has confirmed that the principle of safe and 
suitable access to the site for all users has been established by the existing 
permission.  In relation to the noise and disturbance as has already been 
noted Boundary Lane is identified as a commercial road and will therefore 
expect to carry high volumes of traffic.  It is not considered that the 
additional traffic to be crated would generate noise levels above background 
levels to a level that would conflict with Development Plan policies which 
seek to protect the amenity local residents could reasonably expect to enjoy.  
The proposal therefore conforms to the aims and objectives of the NPPF 
and Policies DM3 and DM14 of the CSDMP and does not conflict with nor 
compromise Policies LP13 and LP26 of the CLLP (2017) that seeks to 
minimise impacts on the highway network, residential amenity and the 
safety of road users. 

 
General Amenity 

 
34. Asbestos and WEEE would be transported to the site in sealed loads for 

bulking up into larger sealed containers.  The management of those wastes 
would also be subject to an Environmental Permit which is currently under 
consideration by the Environment Agency.  The details relating to this Permit 
application were submitted with this application as supporting information 
and confirm that measures would be adopted to mitigate the impacts of 
odour, noise, dust and litter.  The proposed changes to the site layout 
sought by this application would locate the hazardous wastes within sealed 
storage containers to the eastern part of the site.  The proposed site layout 
would also allow clear segregation of inert (non-hazardous) waste streams 
and the efficient and safe circulation of vehicles within the site.  As 

Page 31



discussed above, NKDC have questioned whether there is a need of a 
buffer zone to protect residential amenity however, the Environment Agency 
has confirmed that they have no objection to this application and have not 
indicated that there would be a need for such a buffer zone beyond the 
boundary of the application site.  Officers are therefore satisfied that the 
conditions and controls already imposed on the planning permission (along 
with those which would form part of the Environmental Permit) would be 
sufficient to ensure that the amenity of residents living close to the site are 
not unduly impacted.  The proposed development would therefore meet the 
aims and objectives of the NPPF and Policy DM3 of the CSDMP and would 
not conflict with nor compromise Policy LP26 of the CLLP that states that 
consideration should be given to impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
residents. 

 
Human Rights Implications 
 
35. The proposed development has been considered against Human Rights 

implications especially with regard to Article 8 – right to respect for private 
and family life and Protocol 1, Article 1 – protection of property and 
balancing the public interest and well – being of the community within these 
rights and the Council has had due regard to its public sector equality duty 
under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 
Final Conclusions 
 
36. Having taken into account the nature of the change proposed and the 

supplementary information and details submitted in support of this 
application, the revised development would not exacerbate or give rise to 
any new significant environmental or amenity impacts over and above those 
which have already been deemed acceptable and which could be mitigated 
by the imposition of amended planning conditions.  As a result the proposed 
modification is considered acceptable and can be supported and the revised 
development would still accord with the objectives and principles of the cited 
policies of the National Planning Policy Framework, Lincolnshire Minerals & 
Waste Local Plan: Core Strategy & Development Management Policies and 
Central Lincolnshire Local Plan. 

 
37. Finally, although Section 73 applications are commonly referred to as 

applications to “amend” or “vary” conditions they result in the grant of a new 
planning permission.  Therefore, and for clarity and the avoidance of any 
doubt, it is recommended that the decision notice be issued with a 
comprehensive set of conditions which updates and (where relevant) recites 
the conditions which were originally included and which were attached to the 
previous planning permission. 

  

Page 32



 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. This permission (being granted under Section 73A of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990, as amended) has effect from the date of this decision 
notice as the development subject of planning permission N75/0353/15 has 
been implemented and therefore commenced. 

 
2. This permission related to the site edged red on Drawing No. 2296-A2- 05d 

(received 2 March 2015) for the construction of a building for the purposes 
of waste recycling in association with the current use of the site as a waste 
transfer station and the development works as detailed within the approved 
documents and drawings set out below unless modified by the conditions 
attached to this planning permission or details subsequently approved 
pursuant to those conditions.  The approved documents and drawings are 
as follows: 

 
 Documents 
 

 Planning Application Form (date stamped received 17 March 2015) as 
amended by Section 73 Application Form (dated stamped received 10 
April 2017)  

 Design and Access Statement and Supporting Statement (date stamped 
received 23 February 2015) 

 Flood Risk Assessment 'Proposed Materials Recycling Facility, Boundary 
Lane, South Hykeham, LINCOLN LN6 9NQ' (date stamp received 10 
April 2017) 

 E-mail 'Further Details' (received 6 May 2015)  

 E-mail PL/0034/15 – Mushroom Farm (date stamped received 27 May 
2015)  

 E-mail PL/0158/16 – Supporting Statement (date stamped received 10 
April 2017)  

 Report GBM1013/MP (v1.1) – 'Management Plan' (date stamped 
received 10 April 2017) 

 
Drawings 

 

 Drawing No. GBM1031/05/03 Rev 1 'Plan 2 - Indicative Operational 
Layout' (date stamped received 10 April 2017)  

 Drawing No. GBM1013/05/04 Rev 1 'Indicative Drainage Layout' (date 
stamped received 10 April 2017) 

 
3. Notwithstanding the details contained in Report GBM1013/MP (v1.1) – 

'Management Plan' (date stamped received 10 April 2017), the waste types 
permitted at the site shall only be those as listed in 'Table 1: Maximum site 
storage capacities'. 

 

Page 33



4. The site shall not accept waste until written notification has been sent to the 
Waste Planning Authority of the date that the building and associated 
ancillary infrastructure hereby permitted, have been constructed and the 
Waste Planning Authority acknowledges receipt of that notification.   

 
5. All site operations and activities authorised or required in association with 

this development, including the access and egress of vehicular traffic, shall 
only be carried out between 07:00 and 18:00 hours Monday to Saturday 
(inclusive).  No operations or activities shall be carried out on Sunday, 
Public or Bank Holidays. 

 
6. No wastes or materials shall be stored or stockpiled externally other than 

upon the impermeable yard/area as defined on Drawing No. 
GBM1031/05/03 Rev 1 'Plan2 Indicative Operational Layout' (date stamped 
received 10 April 2017) and the height of such stockpiles or stores shall be 
no greater than 3.6m above the finished surface level of that part of the site 
upon which they are stored. 

 
7. No external lighting shall be fixed to the building or erected within the site. 
 
8. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking or re-enacting 
that Order with or without modification) no building, structure, fixed plant or 
machinery shall be erected, extended or installed on the site. 

 
9. The total number of vehicle movements associated with the importation and 

exportation of wastes and materials shall not exceed 150 movements (75 in 
and 75 out) per day Monday to Saturday.  All vehicles carrying wastes shall 
not leave the site unless its wheels and underside chassis are clean so as to 
prevent materials, including mud and debris, being deposited on the public 
highway. 

 
10. The surfacing of the access and internal yard areas shall be maintained in a 

good state of repair and kept clean and free of mud and other debris at all 
times for the duration of the development so as to prevent such materials 
being deposited on the public highway.  Any accidental deposition of mud, 
debris or other deleterious materials onto the public highway shall be 
removed immediately. 

 
11. The rating level of noise emitted from any plant or equipment on site shall 

not exceed the background level by more than +5dB(A) at any time.  The 
noise levels shall be taken at the nearest noise sensitive premises.  The 
measurements and assessment shall be made in accordance with the 
BS4142:2014 (or an equivalent successor standard or other noise 
measurement methodology). 

 
12. The details of the approved scheme shall be maintained for the duration of 

the development to ensure a Greenfield run-off rate as identified on page 17 
of the Flood Risk Assessment 'Proposed Materials Recycling Facility, 

Page 34



Boundary Lane, South Hykeham, LINCOLN LN6 9NQ' (date stamped 
received 10 April 2017).    

 
13. Notwithstanding details of firefighting water provision, shown on Drawing 

No. GBM1031/05/03 Rev 1 'Plan2 Indicative Operational Layout' (received 
10 April 2017) the site shall not accept waste until further details of the 
above ground vessel to include capacity and design have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Waste Planning Authority.  The approved 
scheme shall be implemented in full and maintained for the duration of the 
development. 

 
14. A total of no more than 49,500 tonnes of material shall be brought to the site 

as shown within the red line boundary on Drawing No. GBM1031/05/03 Rev 
1 'Plan2 Indicative Operational Layout' (received 10 April 2017) per calendar 
year, for the purposes of the development hereby permitted.  The operator 
shall maintain records of their quarterly waste imports to the site which shall 
be retained for at least two years and be made available to the Waste 
Planning Authority within 28 days of request. 

 
Reasons: 
 
1. To comply with Section 73A of The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

(as amended).  
 

2, 3, 4 & 14 
To define the permission and to ensure the development is implemented in 
all respects in accordance with the approved details. 

 
5. To define the hours of operation in the interests of limiting the effects of the 

development on local amenity. 
 

6 - 8 To minimise the visual impacts of the development on nearby residents and 
the wider area. 

 
9 & 10 For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure impacts on highway capacity and 

safety have been fully considered. 
 
11.  To minimise the potential nuisances and impacts of noise on nearby 

residents and the wider area. 
 
12. To prevent the increased risk of flooding, both on and off site. 
 
13.  To ensure an adequate supply of firefighting water. 
 
 
  

Page 35



Informatives 
 
Attention is drawn to: 
 
(i) Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board: 

'Under the terms of the Land Drainage Act 1991 and the Board's Byelaws, 
the prior written consent of the Board is required for any proposed works or 
structures in, under, over or within 6m of the top of the bank of any 
watercourse.  There is an earth bank within the 6m, this has been consented 
by the Board.  Any additional works within this distance will required an 
additional consent.  The Board will not accept any liability for the stability of 
the banks of South Hykeham Catchwater.  Any new outfall to a watercourse 
requires the prior written consent of the Board under the terms of the Land 
Drainage Act. 1991 and should be constructed to the satisfaction of the 
Board. Guidance notes and an application form are attached for the use of 
the agent.' 

 
(ii) In dealing with this application the Waste Planning Authority has worked 

with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner by seeking 
amendments to the application in order to ensure that the development is 
capable of being supported and accords with the objectives and policies of 
the Development Plan.  This approach ensures the application is handled in 
a positive way to foster the delivery of sustainable development and is 
consistent with the requirements of paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

 
 
Appendix 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Committee Plan 

 
 
  

Page 36



Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 
were relied upon in the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Planning Application 
Files:             
N75/0625/17; 
N75/0353/15 and 
N75/0892/13 

Lincolnshire County Council, Planning, Witham Park 
House, Waterside South, Lincoln 

Planning Application: 
15/0133/FUL 

North Kesteven District Council website             
www.n-kesteven.gov.uk  

National Planning Policy 
Framework (2012) 

The Government's website 
www.gov.uk 

Lincolnshire Minerals & 
Waste Local Plan: Core 
Strategy and 
Development 
Management Plan 
(CSDMP) (2016) 

Lincolnshire County Council website 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk  

Central Lincolnshire Local 
Plan (2017) 

North Kesteven District Council website              
www.n-kesteven.gov.uk  

 
This report was written by Felicity Webber, who can be contacted on 01522 
782070 or dev_planningsupport@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

Page 37

http://www.n-kesteven.gov.uk/
http://www.gov.uk/
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/
http://www.n-kesteven.gov.uk/
mailto:dev_planningsupport@lincolnshire.gov.uk


 

Page 38



Site of Application

Location of
Building

Boundary Lane

Land with
Planning Permission

for Industrial
Purposes

Tipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping ATipping A

Gateway Park

Danker Wood



LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Location: Description: 



LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
Reproduced from the 1996 Os Mapping with the permission

of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown
Copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

Copyright and may lead to civil proceedings.

OS LICENCE 1000025370

Prevailing Wind Direction from the south-west 

Application No:
Scale: 1:2500

To vary conditions 1, 4, 7, 11 and 12 of planning 
permission N75/0353/15

Mushroom Farm
Boundary Lane
South Hykeham

N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17N75/0625/17

PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 3 JULY 2017

Page 39

elaine.simpson
Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee held on 5 June 2017
	4.1 Traffic Regulation Orders – Progress Review
	Planning & Regulation 3 Jul 17 TRO Progress Review Appendices

	5.1 To vary conditions 1, 4, 7, 11 and 12 of planning permission N/75/0353/15 at Mushroom Farm, Boundary Lane, South Hykeham - GBM Waste Management - N75/0625/17

